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HISTORIC LANDMARK NOMINATION FORM

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
Planning Division
8130 Allison Avenue, La Mesa, CA 91941 (619) 667-1177

1. NAME

Historic:

and/or common: ROACH"PORTER HOUSE

2. LOCATION
Address: 4990 Porter Hill Road
City: La Mesa State: ., 2Pt 91941
3. CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP  STATUS PRESENT USE
_ District __Public X Occupied __Agricultural __Museum
A Building(s) XPrivate __Unoccupied __Commercial __Park
_ Structure __Both __Work in progress __Educational ¥ Private residenc
_Site __Entertainment __Religious
__Object PUBLIC ACQUISITION - __Government _ Scientific
_In progress __Industrial __Transportation

__Being Considered __Military __Other:

4. OWNER OF PROPERTY

Name:  Anne Hall, Tr. (Anne & Eugene Hall 1990 Survivors Trust)
Address: 4990 Porter Hill Road
City: La Mesa State: CA Zip: 91941

5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Courthouse, Registry of Deeds, etc.:

Address: 1600 pacific Highway .
City: San Diego State: p Zip: 92101

San Diego County Recorder/Assessor

6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

Title: La Mesa Historic Resources Inventory

Date: June 1984
Depository for Survey Records City Clerk, city of La Mesa
City: La Mesa State: ca ZIp: 91944
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7. DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE

_ Excellent _ Deteriorated __Unaltered ¥ Original site )

¥ Good __Ruins ¥ Altered __Moved Date 2Pril 2003
__Fair __Unexposed )

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE:

The Roach-Porter House, designed as a country farm house, is a symmetrical, one and one-half
story wooden frame house with large dormers providing added living space on the upper floor.
The high foundation of cobblestone, concrete block, and latticed archways, adds almost another
full story. A spacious veranda with a balustrades and turned posts, wraps around three sides of
the house. Wide, wooden, exterior stairs with balustrades lead from the ground to the veranda on
the north and south sides of the home.

The shingled hip roof, the veranda, and the high foundation hint of some French Colonial
influence in the design. These features are found in some 19th century homes built in Louisiana
and some parts of Texas. The wide exterior stairs are similar to those found on some southern
homes.

Other features of the Roach-Porter House include a central platform with balustrades at the roof
peak. Most windows are tall and double hung with angled bays on the east and west sides. On
the east side, a large gabled wall dormer with knee braces underneath is above an angled bay.
Wooden doors in the foundation open at ground level and were used as a wagon entrance to
bring lemons into the basement storage area. The home has wide, horizontal, wooden siding.

Apparent alterations include the replacement of or addition to small gabled roof dormers with
larger shed dormers on three sides of this house and partial enclosure of a portion of the veranda
with glass windows and a door at the southwest corner. In the foundation on the west side, a
garage door now leads to a ground level garage and storage areas.

Additional features on this property include a redwood shed used by James Tank Porter as a
studio and workshop and a very large, old, pipe organ cactus.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE - CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
__Prehistoric __Archeology-prehistoric __Conservation __Landscape architecture ¥ Religion
1400-1499 __Archeology-historic __Economics _Law _ Science
:1 500-1599 __Agricultural __Education _ Literature __Sculpture
1600-1699 XArchitecture . _Engineering _ Military __Social /
~1700-1799 ¥Art __Exploration / _Music Humanitarian
%1800-1899 __Commerce Settlement __Philosophy __Theater
1900- __Communications __Industry’ __Politics/Government __Transportation
N __Community planning __Invention - _ Other (specify)
SPECIFIC DATES: BUILDER/ARCHITECT:
1893 : Unknown

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE:

The Roach-Porter House has major significance as one of the few remaining pre-1900 buildings
left in La Mesa. It represents La Mesa’s late 19th century citrus ranching era. The architecture of
this greatly admired farm house is unique. With its wrap-around veranda, high foundation, and
hip roof with flared eaves, it exhibits some French Colonial influence in its design reminiscent of
homes that can be seen in Louisiana and parts of Texas. The house is also historically important
because of its connection with its pioneer owner, Henry Roach, and as the home of prominent
Porter family members: Dr. Henry D. Porter, a medical missionary, and his son, James Tank
Porter, a noted artist and sculptor. The Porters named this house “Ping An Shan,” Chinese for
“Hill of Peace.” Dr. Porter’s brother, Edwards Porter, also lived in this house for a time. He
served as La Mesa’s mayor from 1920 to 1924. The Porter family contributed much to the
cultural, civic, religious and artistic life of La Mesa.

On Jan. 13, 1892, Henry Roach purchased for $1300 a ten-acre property in La Mesa Colony (Lot
79 and a portion of Lot 74). He had the house constructed on this land in 1892 or 1893. Roach
might have hired John Stannard, a noted San Diego architect, to design the house. During the
1890’s, Stannard designed some homes and other buildings in the East County area near La
Mesa such as the Julia Liffreing House on Hillsdale Road in 1893 and school houses at Santee
and Hillsdale. A January 1, 1892 San Diego Union newspaper article indicated that Stannard
was planning a house for Henry Roach in Texas. There is a good possibility that Stannard could
have planned Roach’s La Mesa home as well. The estimated date for construction of this house
is based in part on a statement by James Tank Porter who said he knew “the house to have been
at least 12 years old” when his family purchased the property in 1905.

Henry Roach was born in London, England on Mar 12, 1845. His parents brought him to
America in 1852. The family settled in Constantine, Michigan. During the Civil War, Henry
joined the Union Army at Kalamazoo, Michigan on Feb. 14, 1865 at the age of 19. He served as



a private in Company E, 11th Michigan Infantry and was discharged as a sergeant on Sept. 28,
1865. He later served in the U.S. Army from 1866 to 1872.

By 1876, he had settled in Brackett, Texas and opened a mercantile business selling “a little of
everything.” The town of Brackett, later renamed Brackettville, was about 150 miles west of San
Antonio on the well-travelled California trail. Some of Roach’s best customers were the military
officers and soldiers of the U.S. Army stationed at nearby Fort Clark. The 1880 federal
population census showed that Roach had a wife, Susan, age 28, and two children, Sarah, age 6,
and John, age 3. Henry was also listed as living in Brackettville in the 1890 Veterans Schedule
and recorded in the same town on the 1900 census.

Henry’s Brackettville business prospered, and partners made it possible for him to spend some
summers in San Diego County, California. In January 1892, he purchased the land on which this
house stands in La Mesa. He may have had the house built as a summer home or possibly as a
place to live during his retirement years. A ten-acre lemon orchard was planted on the property.
Henry Roach sold the house on Oct. 3, 1895 to Susan Roach for $5500. The price indicates that a
house had been constructed on the property before the time of this sale. Apparently, the new
owner was his wife or ex-wife, Susan, and they might have been divorced by this time.

Around 1896, Henry married a second wife, Viola M., who was about nineteen years his junior.
When the Spanish-American War broke out in 1898, Henry Roach, who was a patriot, went to
Michigan and volunteered his services to Governor Pingree. As a result, Henry became the
regimental quartermaster for the 34th Michigan Regiment. He went with this unit to Cuba and
participated in the fighting there. When his unit was ordered home after the capitulation of
Santiago, Henry Roach remained behind to act as adjutant general on General Lawton’s staff.
Unfortunately, while serving in this capacity, Henry Roach contracted malaria and became so ill
he had to be taken back to Texas in December 1898.

He came to San Diego with his second wife, Viola, in April 1902 to spend his remaining days
here and died three months later on July 24, 1902 at the age of 57. He was buried in the GAR
section of San Diego’s Mt. Hope Cemetery. His large gravestone also names his widow, Viola
M. Carling, who died on Jan. 15, 1910 and was buried near him. Henry Roach died a fairly
wealthy man with considerable estate in both California and Texas. His heirs included his
widow, his son, John, and his daughter, Sarah (Mrs. Otis) Farnsworth. Although he was often
called “Major Roach” by La Mesa citizens, it is not at all certain that he attained this rank in the
United States Army.

Meanwhile, Susan Roach, who acquired the La Mesa property in 1895, apparently rented out the
house and orchard. A severe drought began around 1897 and lasted until about 1905. Many of
the lemon trees in the La Mesa area died. Susan F. Roach mortgaged the property for $3500 on
Sept. 13, 1899, and after she paid that back, she borrowed $2,000 from George J. Chambers, but
for some reason she failed to fulfill the terms of the contract. On March 26, 1904, Mr. Chambers
sued Susan Roach, who by that time lived in San Antonio, Texas. On August 17, 1904, at the
direction of the court, the house with its orchards was sold at auction on the courthouse steps to
the highest bidder, George Chambers, for $2798.



In 1904, Susan had rented the home to Dr. Henry D. Porter and his family. A year later, on Sept.
19, 1905, Susan Roach and George Chambers sold the Roach house with its citrus groves to

Dr. Henry D. and Elizabeth C. Porter. Dr. Porter named the home “Ping An Shan,” Chinese for
“Hill of Peace,” and they lived there for the rest of their lives.

Henry Porter grew up in the Green Bay area of Wisconsin and graduated from Beloit College in
1867. He received a degree in Theology from Andover Seminary and a medical degree from
what is now Northwestern University in Chicago. In 1872, Henry was commissioned to go to
northern China as a missionary. He remained there nearly 30 years. In 1878, he returned briefly
to the United States and married Elizabeth Chapin in April 1879. Dr. Porter and his bride
returned to China where they served in a village 250 miles south of Peking, establishing a
hospital, evangelizing, and building up a school for boys. Henry and Elizabeth raised three sons
in China: Lucius, Chappell, and James Tank Porter.

At the turn of the century, Dr. Porter, suffering from poor health, fled from China with his family
and sister, Mary Porter. They returned to the United States when the Boxer Rebellion erupted.
For over a year, a Chinese secret society, known by foreigners as “The Boxers,” had murdered
over 200 foreigners and many Chinese Christians. In 1904, the Porter family arrived in La Mesa
and rented the Roach house with its ten-acre citrus grove. They purchased the home and
surrounding orchards in 1905.

Dr. Porter never again resumed his missionary work due to declining health, but retained a keen
interest in world affairs, church work, and the growing community of La Mesa until his death in
1916 at the age of 71. He and Elizabeth were active in the formation of La Mesa’s Central
Congregational Church and were among its charter members.

James Tank Porter, the son of Dr. Henry D. and Elizabeth Porter, was born in Tientsin, China on
Oct. 17, 1883. He fled from China with his family and in 1899, entered Beloit College in
Wisconsin. While at Beloit, a football injury developed into a bone disease which resulted in the
loss of one foot. He came to La Mesa with his parents in 1904 and for the next five years was
bedridden due to his injury. During this time, he experimented with designs and models for
airships and was inclined to become an inventor.

In 1910, James attended Pomona College and became interested in music and art. After his
graduation in 1914, he studied drawing and sculpture in New York. He attended the Beaux Arts
at Columbia University in 1916 and placed second in the Prix de Rome competition. When he
returned to San Diego after World War I, he met Lenore Branam and married her at North Bend,
Washington on Aug. 22, 1923. After their marriage, James and Lenore made their home with his
widowed mother, Elizabeth, at 4990 Porter Hill Road. In 1924, a daughter, Anne, was born to
James and Lenore, and today Anne lives in the house that belonged to her grandparents and
parents.

In 1926, James T. Porter was one of four San Diego sculptors who attended a class in bronze
casting at the Santa Barbara School of the Arts. Later, he started a foundry near his home in La



Mesa so that he could cast his own work. He also cast work for other local sculptors. The
majority of Porter’s sculptures were portrait busts and figures of children. Perhaps his
best-known work is the Testimonial for Ellen Browning Scripps given by the people of San
Diego to the people of La Jolla in 1925. It consists of a figure of a girl in bronze kneeling over a
small pool facing a curved limestone bench carved with dancing children in incised relief. It
was San Diego’s first free-standing public sculpture.

A respected member of San Diego’s art community, Porter was appointed first president of the
eleven member Contemporary Artists of San Diego, when it was formed in 1929. He also served
as president of the San Diego Art Guild in 1932 and 1933. He was a member of the Foothills Art
Association and was an authority on Chinese art, on which he lectured. James Tank Porter
became a nationally recognized sculptor. His work was exhibited in Chicago, New York,
Philadelphia, and throughout California. He won a number of awards, and was asked to be on
the jury of several exhibitions. During the Depression years, Porter began to use his foundry for
the manufacture of bronze sprinkler heads. He owned the Browning Manufacturing Company
from 1936 to 1956, and had several patents, including one for a rotating sprinkler that watered a
square lawn. For thirteen years, Porter served on the La Mesa Planning Commission and was
one of the first to move his business to 8120 Center St. in the new La Mesa Industrial Center
when it opened in the early 1950’s.

James Tank Porter passed away on March 13, 1962, and after his death, the painter Alfred R.
Mitchell, a close friend, organized a memorial exhibition at the San Diego Fine Arts Gallery in
the fall of 1962. The exhibit contained twenty of Porter’s works in bronze, stone and plaster.
After James Tank Porter’s death, his wife Lenore continued to live at the Roach-Porter House.
On May 22, 1977, Lenore Porter quitclaimed the home to her daughter, Anne, a trustee under a
declaration of trust created on March 31, 1977. Lenore died on Aug. 1, 1980. Her daughter,
Anne Porter Hall, still lives in this house

Lenore Alice Branam was born on Oct. 19, 1887 in North Bend, Washington, a tiny town near
Seattle. She was the only one of her young lady friends to leave home for the big city. She went
to Seattle, took a course in a business school and became the “girl Friday” for a dental supply
company. She was a woman’s libber of the 1900’s - loving every minute of her independent life
in the big and exciting city. Ever ready for adventure, she tried anything new and exciting:
riding a new-fangled motorcycle, going down in a diving bell. She invariably accepted whatever
seemed a worthy challenge, and even when she was well into her 70°s and 80’s, she outdistanced
and amazed her younger companions as she climbed pyramids, scaled peaks and sailed the seas.
She married James Tank Porter in 1923, and together they shared many things and traveled to
many places, camping, driving, flying near and far. They had one child, a daughter, Anne.
Today, descendants of James and Lenore still live at “Ping An Shan.”

The Roach-Porter House is one of the most significant buildings in La Mesa because of its
unique architecture and as one of the few remaining structures from the citrus ranching era. The
Roach and Porter families were La Mesa pioneers and are historically important. The Porters
contributed much to the cultural, civic, religious and artistic life of La Mesa.
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10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 494-820-05 & 06
Portion Lots 74 and 79, La Mesa Colony

All of Lot 79 of La Mesa Colony, in the City of La Mesa, County of San Diego, State of
California, according to Map thereof No. 346 filed in the Office of the County Recorder of
San Diego County, March 8, 1887.

EXCEPTING therefrom the Easterly 405.00 fest. Sald Easterly 405.00 feset being
measured along the Northerly line of said Lot; the Westerly line of said land being parallel
with the Easterly line of said Lot, TOGETHER WITH the Easterly 35.00 feet of Lot 74 of
said La Mesa Colony.

ALSO EXCEPTING from all the above that portion lying Northerly of a line described as
follows: :

Commencing at the intersection of the Northerly line of said Lot 78 with the center line of
Porter Hill Road as shown on Map of Porter Hill No. 2273, filed in the Office of the County
Recorder of San Diego County, June 1, 1942; thence along said center line, South 00
deg. 53'00" East, 190.00 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; thence South 89 deg.
17'00" West, 185.00 feet to the Westerly line of the Easterly 35.00 feat of sald Lot 74.

AND ALSO EXCEPTING therefrom that portion of said Lots 74 and 79, lying Southerly of
a line described as follows: '

Commencing at the intersection of the center line of said Porter Hill Road and the
Northerly line of said Lot 79; thence along said center line South 00 deg. 53'00" East,
388.87 feet to the Northeast corner of the land described in deed to Wilford E. Reese, et
us, recorded July 19, 1974 as File No. 74-193771; thence along the Northerly line of said
land Sought 89 deg. 07’00 West, 185.00 feet to the Westerly line of the Easterly 35.00
feet of sald Lot 74.

11.
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ROACH/PORTER HOUSE — c. 1912

One of the few houses remaining from La Mesa’s early lemon ranching days, the
Roach/Porter house was built by Major Henry Roach around 1895 at the top of a
gently sloping hill. In 1904, the house with its surrounding 10 acres planted in lemon
frees became the residence of Rev. Henry D. Porter, his wife, Elizabeth, and theirthree
sons, Lucius, James Tank, and Edwards Chappell. The Porters, who had lived in China
for many years where Dr. Porter served as a medical missionary, named their home
“Ping An Shan,” Chinese for “Hill of Peace”. Following the deaths of Henry and
Elizabeth, Ping An Shan remained the home of James, his wife, Lenore, and their
daughter, Anne. James Tank Porter was a noted local sculptor.
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Entrance stairs on the south side.



James Tank Porter’s redwood studio on
the grounds of the Roach-Porter House.
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T. J. Douclass and Fmma S.

Henry Roach’

DEED.

Book 194 Pare 201
Douvlaqs his wife and . Q.

Stanton, ‘and Ida D. Stanton :
' his wife. Dated January 13th 1392

~t0~

Consideration $1300,00)

Jrent situate in La Hese Colony, in the County of .

s é \.fn Diepo, State of Californiz, and described as follows;
W

1th other roperty
Lot Ho. Beventy-nine (79) as desienated on the plat

of La Mesa Oolony, as surveyed and platted by Wm. H.

~

‘Fitzhueh, §. E. and now on file in.the Recorder's 0ffice

"in said County, containine ten (10) aores,‘together with

the rieht to take water from the ﬁipes or flumes of the
San Diero Flume Company at the rate of one miner's inoh
measured under a four inch pressure for irrigsation and
domestic purposes for said lot 79, subject to the payment
of ‘$30.00 per inch ver annum water rates therefor and to
such rules and repsulations as are specified in a deod
mede by said Company to J. S. dordon, Aug. 20, 1887, and
recorded in 3ook 95 pace 319 of records for deeds for
said County. '

T. J. Dourlass .-

Imma S. Douslass.

c. Q. otanton

Ida D. Stanton

State of Cslifornia

2

w2

 County of 3an Diego

On this 13th day of January{ 1892, before me,
"Thomas Hiseins, a Notary Public. in and for qald County,
residine therein, duly commissionsd and qworn, personally

appeared T. J. DNouglass, Iuma 3. Doueless, (his wife) and




ROACH-PORTER HOUSE 4990 Porter Hill Road
Chain of Title
Deed Book 194 p. 201 - Jan 13. 1892

T.J. Douglass et al sell Lot 79 La Mesa Colony plus por. Lot 74 (10 acres)
to Henry Roach for $1300.

Deed Book 255 p. 425 - Oct. 3, 1895
Henry Roach sells to Susan F. Roach 10 acres for $5500

Mortgage Book 107 p. 125 - Sept 13, 1899
Susan Roach mortgages property for $3500
(This mortgage paid Dec 30, 1899)

Mortgage Book 110 p. 10 - June 8. 1900
Susan Roach mortgages property (George J. Chambers) for $2000 for one year.

Superior Court Case No. 12495 - March 26. 1904

George J. Chambers files a complaint against Susan Roach. Mortgage has
not been paid.

Superior Court - Commissioners Certificate of Sale on Foreclosure - Book 4. p. 178
House sold at auction Sept 17, 1904 to George J. Chambers $2798.10

Deed Book 360 p. 234 - Mar 19. 1905

George Chambers and Susan Roach sell house to Henry D. and
Elizabeth C. Porter

Deed Book 760 p. 364 Aug 30, 1918
Henry D. Porter to Elizabeth C. Porter

Official Records 63-174208 (Release) Sept 30, 1963
Estate of James T. Porter to Lenora B. Porter includes house

Quitclaim May 22. 1977

Lenore Porter quitclaims property to daughter Anne, trustee of a
Declaration of Trust dated Mar 3 1, 1977.




City Directory Listings for 4990 Porter Hill Road

Note: City directory listings for La Mesa did not include street addresses for this area until about
1924. Until Porter Hill Road was completed, the house had an El Cajon Ave. address.

1897 - Mrs. Roach
1905 - Porter, H. D.
1906 - Porter, H. D.
1907 - Porter, H. D.
1908 - Porter, H. D.
1909 - Porter, Henry D. rancher
1910 to 1913 Porter, Rev. Henry D.
1914 and 1915 Porter, Henry (Elizabeth) h. n.s. El Cajon av.
1917 - Porter, Elizabeth (wid Henry D.)
Porter, Henry D. Rev. minister
1918 - Porter, Elizabeth (wid Henry D.)
1920 - Porter, Elizabeth (wid Henry D.)
Porter, Jas T.
1924 - Porter, Elizabeth C. wid H.D. h 500 El Cajon av
Porter, Jas T (Lenora B) sculptor h 500 El Cajon av
1930 - Porter, Jas T. (Lenore B.) sculptor h 510 El Cajon av
1932 - Porter, Jas T. (Lenore B) h 8370 El Cajon av
1934 - Porter, Jas T (Elnora) h 8500 El Cajon av
1935 - Porter, Jas T. (Lenore B) sculptor 8480 El Cajon Av
1960 - Porter, Jas T. h 4990 Porter Hill Road
1961-62 Porter, Jas T. h 4990 Porter Hill Road
1963 - Porter, Jas T h 4990 Porter Hill Road
1971 - Porter, Lenore B (wid James T) retd h 4990 Porter Hill Road
1975 - Porter, Lenore B (wid James T) retd h 4990 Porter Hill Road



HENRY ROACH

from Kinney County, 1852-1977, p. 72

“Henry Roach opened his general mercantile store in the building later known as the Blue
Goose Saloon in 1876. In 1880 Brackett had a flood called the “Big Flood” - so there must have
been minor floods before 1880. There was an even Bigger Flood in 1899.

After the “Big Flood” Mr. Roach moved his store into the Cornell Building, later the
McCabe Drug Store (now demolished). ’

From there Roach moved his store into a new building across the street which now forms
the western half of the Rio Grande Electric Co-Op offices. He took a partner and the firm
became Roach and Mahon.

Niels Petersen became a partner when Mr. Mahan retired because of ill health and the
name was changed to Roach and Company.

On June 14, 1899, came the “Bigger Flood.” Water was five feet deep in the store. It
had rained 18 inches in six hours during the night.

In 1903 Mr. Roach died and Mr. Petersen bought his interest.”

from Brackett News Stories December 10, 1898

“Mr. Henry Roach who has been all through the Spanish American war from start to finish

returned to Bracketville Monday. He is home sick with fever contracted while in Cuba. We are

sorry that he is ill, but hope that he will soon recover.”
http://www.rootsweb.com/~txkinney/brackettnews.html
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THE DEATH OF
- HENRY ROACH

Closing of the Eventful Life of a

Patriot—Had Fought Through |

Two Wars—Funeral Will
Be Sunday After-
noomo.

',-.,Tum(n‘ro'w afternoon will bhe held the
fiml:rul of Henry Ioach, whose place
“ameng men will be missed not only In
this community, but tn other citles
gpd clrelen In which he moved, Death
catpe to hlm an Thursdny after an -
hass which had kept him bed for
severa! months, and from which he wiy
aware that he would not recover une
lexs by almont w milracle, :

Mr. Tonch wax born in London, Iing-
Jund, on Murch 12, 1840, und. wius theres
tore i ltUe mmore than 57 yenrs of o,
He cume to thik country with )_1lu'pur7
ents while he was yet a-child, and was
brought up in Constantine, Mlich, e
reached. enrly manhood at the ll'mﬂ ol
the rebelllon, and us soon as he could
be uccepted, threw llimm.-l(‘ Into the
war with the zeal of a putrlot, enlist-
ing uw w private In one of the Michi-
pun reglments, nnd fAinully recelvinkg -hia
discharge nn o (st gergeunt of Come-
puny koof the Nineteenth Michlgan in-
funtry. ‘I'he discharge s glgned hy
Jeorge ‘H. Plerce, buttullon major of
the U, H. AL, and captaln of the Nine-
teenth Infantry, communding Compuny
K, wnd to the end he haw appended the
remark, A falthrul and viduable non-
((um{nlmlmw«l offfcer--un  Intelligent,
honorable, high-minded moan.”

At the. cloke of the war, he moved
to Texus, where ho began o mercantile
Hre, and where for thirty yenrs he wnx
a member of the firm of Roach & o,
of Brackettaville, e was also wmem-
ber of the  younger firms Hobby &
Jtoach, ut 8poftord, Tex., nnd of Roweh,
Mcl,ymon & Co., of Del 1o, Tex, In
all of these extublixhnientn he petidned
hin interest to the thme of hig death,

IFFor muany yenrs, he spent hiln sume-
mers here, nnd becwme Intevested oas
i wtockholder In severnl banklng In-
stitutions, - and he was well and mont
fuvorably known to o lorge nmnber of
Han Diego's cltizonn,

In

-

contracted a

CWhlte Plgeon, Mich, and
| .Mt John Noach of Arkanuny, .
“The deceased .was o member of the

When  the  HBpanish-American
tending to his  burlnexs ut Del Rio,
Tex. He often rald thut he felt u per-
sonu!l cnll to take part In unother awar
for the flag, and feeling that hisx ner-
vices khould be given to the state which
appreclutedd them In the former war,
e went to Michigan and offered them
to Governor Plngree,  who made him
teglmental quartermaster of the Thir.
ty<fourth  Michigan  regiment,  with
which body of men he went o Cuba,
reaehing there Juxt n fl-\\"«lu,\'n before
the memorable xen Hght whieh ended
I the destruction © of Cervera's fleot,
When the regiment had landed, he hyd
o remain on bonrd ship, getting  ofr
the storex and ammunition, so that he
wus one of the feaw army otfleers 1o vea
and puarticfpate in the memorable-fight,

He wawn &0 cloge up with the tighting
that when [t was nenrly over, and
had been carrled by the Qrooklyn and
the Oregon to the westward, he was
pluced In charge of the boats  which
were taking the men off the beached
Spanish crulsers Oquendo and Marla
Therera.  When that work was finlxh-
ed, he Jolned hin regiment on shore, and
took part In the fighting which ended
in the capitulation of Santlugo. The
reglment war xoon ordered home, but
Mr. Roach wax detadned to net as ads
Jutant general on Gen, Lawton's staf,

T was while he wan o acting that he
violent -case of  Cubun
malarial fever, and becnme wo {1 that
he had to }‘t\nlgn Iix porition and cons
sent to be brought baek to this coun-
trye e o wnn at hix home (o lexas,
when Lawton wan ordered to the IPhi-
Ipplnes, and 1t xeemed to be the trhnd
of hix Hfe that he could not go with
him.  The Cuban fever had taken tpo
strong a hold on hilm, and he could not
L:n‘ ’

Some three months ngo, he came (o
San Diego, saying that he wne Kolng
to spend the remudnder of hix duys hore
whether they were muny ar few, ” e

“was compelled to take 1o his bed roon

after coming here, and he dd =6l rixe
from ., Ro well did he love the old
Mag, thal he had hix good wite drape
It over the head of hix bed where he
could see ft all the thne, for his waxr a
deeply patrlotic charneter. e’ had n
faculty-of drawing everybody to him,
und he wax beloved Ly all for the
aweetness of hir disposition, e felt
that the end could not be avohded, but
It waw hig suying, “To lUve In the heartx
of thore we leave behin, s not to dle."

Mr. Rouch leaves ‘surviving him a
widow, Mrg. Violn Roach; a duughter,

Mrs, Otin Farnaworth of RBan Antonlo,.

Tex.: w wister, Mrs, Sarah Thumix  of

brother,

Alamo lodge No. 44, F. and A, M. of
Bapi Antonlo, Tex., und of W. H, Lewlx
post No. 17 of Fort Clark. He often
expressed the wilsh that when he was
to be lald away, It should Le doune by
the drand Army, and the members wlil|
have Bome part In the funeral sec-
~ices, which wijl be Neld tomorrow af-
ternoon at 3 o'clock from the under-

» war |
broke out In 1898, Mr. Rouch war al-

|

pe cem-

takirg Topms of Johnson ¥ Connelj at

the.comer of Heventh and D streets

Thé Interrhent will be at B¢, Ho

i
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b e
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|
; i
{ >
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V101a Roach Asks Lettcrs of Ad i

: & lut«rh.mgh und J._ S. uxllvn
L _'\1 I(nu(h mud peUthm )uur(lu“ :
1.nfLemuon rur lvttem or mlmlui'-tmtinn ’

B acres of-
- ,"a('w n

mimstratxon on Her Hus-
band s Estate. ‘

ﬂ\'\m ot Robert Hauser A(lmlttod to

Probate-—%tlpu)nt]on Flled m«._.."

the Cactus Ofl (,ompa.ny

Cnse.,.,' &

[ . o
. . . ot

Thrmxgh hor nttornuw I’utmbnu},h
\']Ula\

on- the: estnte ot the lnte H«m; Rouch.

;' The pe Htlon shows thu r<nnmn,\ prox)-
certyd tmdls!dedof hale Interest 1,040 |
3 \leon Jurids w150 604 |

Rl\‘éﬂslde t‘ount\.» \nl\wd it
$3.000 . 150° z«hurcs un l)ivg-) . .\\mg'

L bank. qlotk 81.)‘000 4000 NRres Grant
S edges gt)ld and QOppO vnmp.m\. vale!

"""uml at $1 per sh.né. 34,0005 lige in‘:ur‘

Rt $18,000} wt.ll value of the estate ||
ln"l’ums. $60, 000, UPhe helrs ure \Iulu
. Rogceh, the wldow und petitioner; J.) M,

. Tl ance xmlic}; $6,7105°48,240 pounds’ \\heal,
$450: ' nine notes lu the value: ubout ,

s.,o,ooo lutul \.ﬂue ot the ‘estate In thls

J{n.uh Elmer Timmls,  Amy ’Ihnmls.
Mra.  Mary Hufr, Mabel Thumis and

~Sarah Furnsworth,

e
\“




James 1885

Dr. Henry 1890
The Porter Siblings

James, the eldest, never married. He joined his brothers and
sister in La Mesa in 1916. He died in 1934 at age 98.

. Edwards, active in the business community,
Edwards 1888 was the mayor of La Mesa from 1920-24.

Henry, a doctor, was a medical missionary in China.
He settled in La Mesa in 1904. One of his three sons,
James Tank Porter (pictured below) was a noted sculptor.

Mary, who was not married, served as a missionary in China,
along with her brother, Henry. In La Mesa, she lived with her
‘brothers, James and Edwards, in a home they called Rose Hedge.

Mary 1885 James Tank 1928



AMONG THE CHURCH FOUNDERS

MR. and MRS. JAMES O. YOUNG
were early settlers in La Mesa.
They were among the people of
this community who helped to
found and establish Central Con-

gregational Church.

DR. HENRY PORTER (right) Med-
ical Missionary to China under
the auspices of the American
Board of Foreign Missions. He
was very active in the formation
of Central Congregational Church

MRS. ELIZABETH PORTER served
with her husband in China for
many years. She was the daugh-
ter of Dr. Chapin, former Presi-
dent of Beloit College, Wisconsin.
She and her husband retired in
La Mesa after the Boxer Rebel-
lion in China.

MRS. GRACE YOUNG CANNON
{far right) is the only living char-
ter member of Central Congre-
gational Church. :

CENTRAL CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH 50th Anniversary



LA MESA SCOUT Oct. 27, 1916, p.3

‘P(\h,‘ TER-—At La Mesa, Oct. 23, 1916,

f;f Ur. Henry D. Porter, husband of
Elizabeth Porter of La Mesa, father
of Lucius Porter of Tung Chou,
North China, James T. Porter of La
Mesa, Edwardz Chappell Porter of
New York City, N. Y:; and brother
of James W., Edwards and Miss
Mary Porter of La Mesa; a native
of Wisconsin, -aged 71 years, 2
months, 4 days.

Funeral services will be held at
the Congregational church Saturday
morning, Oct. 28, under the direc-
tion of E. H. Stokes, Rev. C. W. Hill
officiating. A memorial service will
be held at the Congregational ehurch
Sunday morning at 11 o’cloek,

Henry Dwight Porter was born in
{Green Bay, Wis., Auguat 19, 1845, the
son of a minister, Rev. Jeremiah
(Porter. He was a frail child, but
‘grew “into -a -vigorous manhood and
was able for years‘tomadure both in-

jbeyond the ordinsry. - He was grad-.
uated from Beloit Callege in - 1867
fand -in ‘the fouwr. sucetceding  years
1200k courses in theo - and médicie
{in Andover, Mass, New York and
'wmmsmhthe-

tellectual and physical labors quite’|

fslogy from Andover Seminary apd in |
1;;%@%%1091@
;iem.mﬁnmmm«tedmﬂ\

 In broken" iuaml,»ic Wk called by
| the exigencies of the Boxer-uprising
m1900 toyetmnrdnmandun-
{tiring labors. They proved too much
{¥or his weary Trame and he retyrned
1 the next year to t‘ho l!mted States,
suffering invalid.
© In 1904 he- fmma In ualifomia a
<limate better ~suited . to his “heeds
‘than any which he \md “tried and
‘eame to La Mesa, where he spent the |
}l&lt eleven years of hig life. Never,
! able to resume any professional work,
fh'- had intervals of comparative coti-
i fort and was always keen in his inter-
"est in the church and community lifc. |
i His wide range of study and thoucht
i kept him always busy with books or
“pen, and his warmth of heart and bal-
"ance of judgment made him a greatly
‘valued neightor and friend.




I " Tell Him Now Y
- &oul Jan. 13,9!5?5"‘

“—If yg;: think some praise is due
m,

" Now’s the time to sllp it to him,

For he cannot read h),s tombstone,

When he’s dead.”

Edwards: W. Porter, Patriarch of
La Mesa, 84 years young, as he puts
it, on his birthday, next month, Few
men have established a more enviable
record for service to this communi-
ty than has Mr. Porter—Mayor
Porter, as he is still fondly termed,

than~h

wvalinmiichinae that hanar o

ming of perspective, and content with
the statu quo,’caused no doubt by
the numberless disappointments, dis-

illusionments, failures to achieve the

goal, all met with in life’s journey,
and which generally result in the
firmer conviction that -there is noth-
ing new under the sun. But not so
with.Mr. Porter. He still looks to
the front and has not succumbed.
He is partial to youth; its aims, am-
bitions, fevers, and total disregard
of the past fascinate “him, and he
still retains his youthful enthusiasms.

Consequently he is progressive in
heart, always deeply interested in
improvement, betterment, going
ahead, and in this ‘way has made his
influence widely felt upon the com-
munity.

It was under Mr. Porter's regime
as mayor that the city first under-
took the reconstruction and re-habili-
tation of the city’s sewer system,
which is now about to be completed
with the installation of the Collier’s
addition mains. He started the
movement for the discontinuance of
the numerous little mutual water dis-
tribution companies within the city
limits and their consolidation under
the city’s management. " He has
worked hard for paving, for better
equipment to carry on the city's
business, for increased fire protec-

tion, for allwthose things ';vhich go

to make La Mesa the well improved
city it is today. And naturally he
has been deeply interested in the
water problem, and has .lent all his
energy - and influence to the back
country’s cause against. the en-
croaching claims of the big city to
the west. Mr. Porter is. a mighty
valuable citizen, and it is with sin-
cere pleasure that we “tell. him
now,” that his service' has been ap-
preciated. - ) L .

He came to La Mesa in NBvember,
1904, from Detroit, His business ca-
reer has been varied and covering a
wide range of experience, A drug-.
gist in Chicago, railroad contractor
in Michigan," Indlana, -purchasing
agent for- the Canada’ Southern, now
part of the Mithigan Central, for
five years, and manufacturer of pat-
ent brushes for six or seven years. in
the city of Detroit, Mr. Porter has
been. all - through" the business’ m111
The lasf. 20 ‘years .of his. hfe, here
in’ La Mesa, have been, gpent in re-
.tu-ement :

't}}g publxc z life "of-,
,cafiae with his "~ appoIRt

citg ccﬁmcll “to AL ‘the’ méaixc’  eause
by - the temg’natxon ‘of -Dr.-.J. “H. Mal—
lery. =He served tfxat unexplred ‘term, |
‘was ‘re-elected,” and- appointed  chair-
man: of  the boatd whxch _position. he

sir‘:fa"’ﬂ;g;

held fou' - years,: !rom 1920 to:1924.

."ul

and’ two*g"randchildr@; ! =
ward <Noble,—an£‘2§ﬁ Lonis
both t«n’l‘lﬂln. e




[WARDS PORTER,
LA MESA PIONEER |
(ALLED BY DEATH

|
Fumeral  services  were (‘(}n(lucted

Wotne- slay over the remains of lid-

waris W. Porter, who passed away at|

. ye~idence in this city Monday after
2o lness of ten days. Mr. Porter's
ﬂ ' resulted from an attack of hron-
.} nneumonia, and his pass5n2 was
4 ~oirce of sorrow to the entm com-

munity.

4 larre number of his b,ewa\ed[
trnds assembled at the Copgrega-
tional church Wednesday at 2 o'clock
to payv their last respects to the de-
parted. Services were condurted by
nev. W. W. Scudder, asaisted by Rev.
Charies William  Hill, and
touching tribute to him as a
citizen.

Bay.
vears ago., He was 87 years |of age;
He is survived by a brother, James
H. Porter, and a asister, Miss R.
Porter, both of whom reside and’
2 son, Mr. Edwarde H. Porter of Tif-!
fin, Ohio, who was present at the cere-s
monies, and two grandehildren.

Mr. Porter's bedy was cremhed at
Greenwood.

“The following eulogy and blomphi
cal sketch was read at the fumeral by
Rev. W. W. Scudder.

Fdwards Porter deserves the name
of La Mesa's foremost citizen.” He
would have been the firat to protest
any such title- -am honor usually given
to men less modest than he. But his

fellow-citizsens will gladly accord it to}

him for his sterling integrity, nobility
of character, unselfish serviee and the
universal esteem in which he was held.

ancestry.

Edwards Porter sprang from one of
the finest family strains in our nation.
It would be difficult to mateh the dis-
tinguished achievements and influence
of his parents in laying the founda-
tions and shaping the structure of the
religious life of our great west. They
were home missionaries from New
Fngland of remarkable consecration
and ability.

Jornmrah Porter, hls fathor, organ-

LA MESA SCOUT, LA MESA, CALIFORNIA, DECEMBER 7, 1928

ere al.
l\ﬁ.n and |
]

Mr. Porter was a native of Green|'
Wis.,, and came to La RMesa 24

1-eral passenger agent for the Michigan
1 Central railroad.” Then for 20 years
‘1he engaged in mann!achxringi!sb&-

I Missxon in

To know a man one must know his | ‘this. commuyGty.

t for four years served it as mayor, and
| was “instrumentql “im starting the im-

e —

'|Edwards Porter !

Called By Deathv

(Continued from page 1)

ized the first church in Chicago. Eliza
-.P.nm:,.hi&mothu,-»twght ~the —first |
school in Chicago. In other sections
of the west they left similar enduring |
monuments of their devotion to our!
country’s highest welfare. They were
foremost in organizing the great for-
eign missionary outreach of the
churches of their day, and as a conse-
quence the influence of that family is

l as great in ite world-wide sweep today |

as it has been in our own land.
Their home was a station in the un-
derground railroad. Throughout the |
Civil war Dr. Porter served as a chap- |
lain in the army, and Mrs. Porter——a.
frail bundle of 100 pounds weight— | |
is said to have closed the eyes of 1,300

MLMWMM :
!sudes ministering to thousands who
struggled back to health—in a tireless
service of mercy and relief.

“In such a home Edwards Porter was
born oo February 28, 1841. He grad-
uated from Beloit college in 1862, an
| institution in which the Porter family
have large interests. During 1872-1876

Ihe-was construction ageut for the| |
| Lake Shore & Michigan Southern rail:

way, and from 1876 to 1879 was gen-

tmxt, where i he supervised
the ereetion of three churches wit.h4
wiuch he: was-connected. .

ok,

1+ In 1904 he came to La bri,ng-
Inz ‘'with hify ‘his invalid t.her Br.
Henry Porter .o “whose .

{4l ‘resides ” hepe.  For: twénty-fonr
yeu-n he mgﬁg :,_’ﬂjbome-in Lz

xistg.x' Mary

“missionaries

:o%)e lmencan Bonfl
forth- ‘China. -

‘Edwards Porter built his- ufnw
“With other La Mgas
.pioneers he sawthe town mcdmontnd

|.provements and the ‘public progress
L we_enjoy .~ He mas 8 m;mbs of
| the ‘Country ehib and chamber of-eom

merce and president of the lnﬂlnsb
Builling and-Loan association, Which
has had so sucoessTul a cireer. *nu
undertook this k responsib,

the age of 88, when most mo m:
through active service, and was ever
[ the kindly advisor oi' all whe sonxht
his coumsel. |

P

<
)

Hm

|

 building committee in the erectiop of

! low-Christians on the Sahbath, never

"In charscter Mir. Perter was genbie,
moaest, courteous; demoacratic, great-
haﬂ!d.nndtq:ﬂetht m

toorgnmr.etheCentnlw
al church, acted as treasurer of its

ita new edifice, supervising with jn-
finite pains every detail of its strua-‘
ture. He I flot—as ‘Thatiy publie-
spirited citizens do—limit his com-
munity-building efforts to material in-
terests only. He placed the higher
spiritual values first, and around those
grouped all his efficient services. He
was always in his place with his fel-

making business or pleasure the lame
excusze for neglecting the cultivation |
of his spiritual life. He was a man'

—eewld trust. These

mhem—e&ewoae
| higher qualities of character that have |

never sprung from mere material!
progress, are a substantial evidence'
to us all of the touch of God on huma.n

.| life, and of the future existence into
‘;“hl(‘h a great soul has been uchered.
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Way Back When—

NCE

By Marie Edwards

years Southern Californis had suffered

from a drought, and most of the or-|

chards were dead. but this’ winter of
1904-06 the rains begain -sgain and
water was once mere.. running in the
tlume. With each ten acres' of land, in
those days, the purchaser paid $1,000
for water rights, built the tecessary
flume to carry the water to his own
land, and then paid $80 per year for
one inch of water, which was said to
be all the water that could be used on
‘10 geres.

Rev. H. A, McKmney ‘was already
here .at that time, and had gathered a
small group together tor Sunday ser-
vices, which group was the nucleus of
the present Methodist church, accord-
ing to Mr. Porter. Con :

In 1906, Mr. Porter. came in con-
tact with the La Mesa grammar school
and found that the enrollment was the
large number of 27 pupils,, -

Col.. James F. Randlett:, an Indian
agent ‘and retired . .army otficer, was
the closest neighbor ot Mr.. Porter, for
many “years living at what 'is now
known as Rose Hedge. “He was one of
the most interesting men in the com-
munity. His cook for an untoleé number

of years was a Chinese by the name |

of Mok. It was Mok that set out all
the trees around this beautiful home
and he who planted the cherokee rose
hedge which was cut down two years
ago wen the boulevard was widened
to 100 feet. Although the Colorel ruled
every-one with an iron hand,” said Mr.
Porter, “he was in turn ruled by
| Mok.” ‘ S

The Porter home is known as “The
Hill of Peace” and was purchased
from ‘Major Roach in 1906. Mr. Por-
ter knows the house to have been at
least 12 years old at the time of pur-
chase, but with all the years that have
passed the home scems to become more
beautiful and substantial.

3| | beauty about them and the whole coun-

James Tank Pb;jgr' was born in
China and_came to, La Mesd, an in-

valid, in Novembpr 1304. For seven|

Besides the McKinneys and Col.
Randlett, there were hardly more than
a halt & dozen other families in the
community and only a general store,
packing house and post-office at the
time Mr. Porter came to La Mesa. He
believes that the ranches in those days
were real ranches with a glamour and

try that seems to be fast becoming
lost in the tush of today,

Mr. Porter is a sculptor by profes-
sion and has done some very noted
works of art which have found ‘their
nlaca in  varland memariale nlanad

B Y T L s orervarn,

about San Dlego county. .

His 28 years of residence in La Mesa
place him among the old-timers here,
although he is still young in point of
years. .
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Oct. 18, 1946

James Tank Porter
Here In 1904

Jumes Tank Porter had been liv-
2 years in 1906, living in the home

5020 Porter Hill Road.
When the Porter family moved
here in 1904 it was at the end of a

lemon groves planted earlier had
died for lack of water. But by
1906 new groves were being put in.

Mr. Porter remembers well La
Mesa's only 2 story building of
that time, a brick structure, Nebo
at Lookout (La Mesa Blvd.) which
housed the Post Office. Remodeled
over the years to serve various
tenants, the building today houses

| the El Cajon-La Mesa Savings and
Loan Company and the Chamber
of Commerce,

ing in La Mesa with his parents

he and Mrs. Porter occupy today,!

T-year drought and many of thej
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James Tank Porter,
Early:La Mesan Dies

James Tank Porfer 78, died
Tuesday at his Home, 4990 Porter
Hill Rd., where he. lived since
1904, after coming to this coun-
try from Tientsin, China, where
he was born,

Services will be at 10 a.m. today
in Erickson-Anderson Mortuary
with cremation following. His
"ashes 'will be buried in Glen
Abbey Cemetery.
~ Porter, listed in Who's Who in
American Art, was a retired in-
ventor, manufacturer and nation-
ally known sculptor., He was the
inventor of irrigation sprinkler
systems, and owned and operated
Browning Manufacturing Co., 8120
Center St., 25 years until retir-
ing in 1957. During the 1930's,
he maintained a New York studio
two years, " where he did his
sculpturing. : .

He came here with his parents,
the late Dr. Henry Dwight. and
Elizabeth Chapin Porter, pioncer
La Mesans. His father had re-
tired as a medical rmssxonary in
China.

Porter was a member of the
La Mesa 'Planning Commission
for 13 years. He was a member of
the San Diegd Fine Arts Society,
Foothllls Art Association, San
'Diego Art Guild, San Dlego Art
Institute and San Diego Audubon
Society. He was an authority on
Chinese- art, on  which he had
lectured.

.He remained actwe in:his home
studlo until the Jast few months.
His last commission was a memor-
ial - plaque of Dr. James Stuart
Holmes, founder of , Dover-Fox-
croft Academy in Maine.. He also
produced a bronze bas-relief

plaque of the late Dr Clinton G
Abbott, former director of the
Natural History Museum, where
it is displayed.

Some of his works are in the
San Diego Fine Arts Gallery's
permanent collection. His sculp-
ture also has been exhibited at
Yale University; Beloit College in
Wisconsin; the National Academy
of Design in New York City; the
Pennsylvania, Academy . of Tine
Arts and the Golden Gate E‘(-
position of 1939,

Porter was educated at Pomona
College, Claremont, and the Art
Students League and Beaux Arts
School at Columbia University in
New York: City. Before coming
here, he was an assistant to the
late Gutzon DBorglum, creator of
the Mt. Rushmore memorial in
the Black Hills, South Dakota.
He worked in Borglum's studio at
Stamford, Conn.

Surviving are his wife, Lenore;

'a- daughter,” Mrs. Anne Hall of

Lemon Grove and two grand-
children.. .

. IR

P-

1

LA MESA SCOUT

Aug. 24, 1923

BRANAM~PORTER

ord was t‘q’lv‘d this week of

th. {magziage jo Nomth Bend, Wash.,

home of the bride's father,

!n K. F. Branem, of Miss Lenora

Bramam and Mr. James T.

Porter, son of Mrs. E. C, Porter of

Le The ceremony was per-

Wednesday afternoon, Au-

| gueq 22, Both the bride and groom

have been residents of La Mesa for
time past.

Fllowing the ceremony the couple

laft{ by automobile for a leisurely

will: meke thetr home st the Ping
An ‘Shen rench at Lookout avenue
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Sculpture Exhibit Opens In Research Archives

A new exhibit “San Diego and the Art
of Sculpture” will open in the reading
room of the SDHS Research Archives on
Saturday, January 2, and run through
the month of March. Over twenty-five
pieces, mostly from the Society’s collec-
tions, will feature the creations of
sculptors who worked in San Diego
before 1940. Also included will be a
number of photographs of sculptors
and some of their larger works around
the community.

Although San Diego was never
known as a center for the art of sculp-
ture, a number of prominent and tal-
ented sculptors were attracted to our
city. Perhaps San Diego’s best-known
sculptor was Donal Hord, the only local
artist to be named a full Academician of
the National Academy of Design and a
Fellow of the National Sculpture
Society. Hord’s first award winning
sculpture will be shown, as well as the
original plaster models for some of his
more famous projects such as the
Guardian of Water fountain and the
Angel of Peace for the American Ceme-
tery at Henri-Chapelle Belgium.

Other works to be seen in the
exhibit include three rare plaster
studies by Arthur Putnam, creator of the
large bronze Indian and Padre at
Presidio Park; two important bronzes
by James Tank Porter as well as his
small plaster study for the Ellen Scripps
testimonial in La Jolla; and a selection
of small bronzes by Isabelle
Churchman.

One of the highlights of the exhibit

will be Marco Zim’s Portrait of My
Father. This bronze bust was awarded a
silver medal at the Panama-California
Exposition held in San Diego in 1915.
Along with the bust, the actual award
medal will also be on display. Marco
Zim helped Maurice Braun found the
San Diego Academy of Art in 1911, and
his father was one of San Diego’s first
rabbi’s. The bust and medal are on loan
from the artist’s grandson, Roger Zim of

S e Y

Pacific Palisades.

Among the other sculptors whose
work will be shown are Anna Valentien,
Allen Hutchinson, Felix Peano, Celeste
Bastiste, Anna Coleman Ladd, and
Frederick Schweigardt. Learn a little
more about San Diego’s artistic heritage
by visiting this exhibit at the Research
Archives, open Wednesday through
Saturday, 10 AM to 4 PM.

- James Tank Porter’s Ellen
Scripps Testimonial dedi-
cated in La Jolla in 1926
was San Diego’s first free-
standing public sculpture.
One of the small plaster stu-
dies for the piece will be
included in the exhibit “San
Diego and the Art of Sculp-
ture” at the SDHS Research
Archives reading room.




